
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

North Liberty City Council 
Regular Session 
August 28, 2018 

 



 

 
 

City Administrator Memo 
 



City Council Memo 
for August 28, 2018 
from the desk of Ryan C. Heiar 

 

Ryan C. Heiar, City Administrator 
rheiar@northlibertyiowa.org • office (319) 626-5700 • fax (319) 626-3288 • cell (319) 541-8404 

published August 23, 2018 •page 1 
 

 Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and included in your 
packet: 

 City Council Minutes (08/14/18) 
 Claims 
 July Revenues and Treasurer’s Report 
 Liquor License applications for Beer Burger, Zio Johno’s and 
Gasby’s 
 Trail Improvements Project, Change Order #3, $1,203.87  
 Trail Improvements Project, Pay Application #3, $17,334.46  

Streb Investment Rezonings – 3rd Reading & Adoption 
Streb Investments is requesting the rezoning of two commercially-
zoned lots that have been marketed for sale for some years without 
success, to permit mixed-use development. These lots are located 
between highway commercial use and mobile home park use. A Good 
Neighbor meeting was held to allow any interested party an 
opportunity to comment on this rezoning prior to submission, and 
one adjacent commercial property owner attended to ask questions 
about potential development, but did not object to the rezoning. No 
site plan is prepared for these rezonings, but will be required before 
development can occur on the lots. Both rezonings are recommended 
for approval by staff and by the Planning Commission. 
 
The Preserve Preliminary Plat Agreement and Preliminary Plat  
This request is to subdivide an existing 71.51 acre parcel into 123 
single-family, duplex, and multi-family lots sized to meet 
requirements of the zoning approved and published for RS-4, RS-6, 
RD-10, RD-8, and RM-8. This development is well served with parks 
and streets. Centennial Park is adjacent to the east, and trail 
connections are provided from the neighborhood into the park. 
Kansas Avenue, St. Andrews Drive, and Alexander Way are major 
streets identified on the Major Streets Plan. Significant dedications 
are being made to the City for Alexander Drive (collector street), St 
Andrews Drive (also a collector street), and for a future roundabout 
at the intersection of those two streets, as part of this plat; and fees 
for sewer and adjacent road improvements are required. The multi-

Meetings & Events 
Tuesday, Aug 28 at 4:00 – 6:00 
p.m. 
City Attorney Scott Peterson 
Retirement Reception 

Tuesday, Aug 28 at 6:30p.m. 
City Council  

Tuesday, Sept 4 at 6:30p.m. 
Planning Commission 

Thursday, Sept 6 at 7:00p.m. 
Parks and Recreation 
Commission 

Friday, Sept 7 at 7:30a.m. 
First Friday Coffee 
Connections, South Slope 
Cooperative 

 

 

 



published August 23, 2018 •page 2 
 

family lots, 1 and 29, require site plan approval prior to development. Accommodations are 
planned at the southwest corner of this plat to allow the continued flow of significant amounts of 
storm water originating southwest of the property. There has been a very good working 
relationship between the City staff and this developer in finding solutions to access, storm water 
management, and other issues for development. Staff and Commission recommend 
approval of the plat. 
 
Police Department Building Project  
The first step in bidding the project for construction is a public hearing on the plans and 
specifications. The public hearing will be held on Tuesday. Council will be asked to consider 
approving the resolution regarding the plans, specifications, and estimate of cost for the project.  Bids 
will be taken on September 27, 2018 at 2 p.m. at City Hall.  Plans for the project will be available for 
review in a completed form after September 4 at City Hall. The project is estimated at a not to exceed 
of $5,000,000.  
 
2018A Bond Sale  
Tuesday’s agenda includes two public hearings on the upcoming bond sale. The resolution on the 
agenda is the next step in approving the bond sale. Bonds will be sold on Tuesday, September 25 
with Council approving the sale at the Council meeting that evening.  
 
 

Project 
Bond 
Type 

 
Amount 

Penn Street Improvements (Alexander to Jones) TIF/GO $1,075,000 
NL Road/Penn Street Improvements TIF/GO $1,075,000 
Centennial SRF Project TIF/GO $1,000,000 
Ranshaw House TIF/GO $200,000 
NL Road/Penn Street Improvements GO $1,075,000 
Fees $25,000 

$4,450,000 
 
 
Forevergreen Road Acquisitions 
The IDOT is negotiating with property owners along Forevergreen Road for easements and 
acquisitions for the upcoming road project. While the IDOT is the project lead and initially funding 
this project, acquisition costs will eventually be the responsibility of the City, thus require Council 
approval. The acquisitions on the agenda are for property owned by Keystone North Liberty LC 
(1275 W. Forevergreen Road) in the amount of $15,910.00, Bart and Andrea Ruba (1760 W. 
Forevergreen Road) in the amount of $3,020.00, Thomas and Carol Dornbush (1720 W. 
Forevergreen Road) in the amount of $10,000.00, Brian and Sheila Wayson (1550 W. Forevergreen 
Road) in the amount of $5,300.00, Art and Coleen Chipman (1490 W. Forevergreen Road) in the 
amount of $18,380.00, and Julia and Nicholas Oxley (1420 W. Forevergreen Road) in the amount of 
$3,970.00. Staff recommends approval of the acquisitions. 

 



 

 
 

Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2018                   Updated: August 23, 2018 2:30 p.m. 
Page: 1 
 
 
, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

 Agenda 

North Liberty City Council 
August 28, 2018 
Regular Session 

6:30 p.m. 
City Council Chambers  

1 Quail Creek Circle 
 

1. Call to order   
 

2. Roll call 
 

3. Approval of the Agenda 
 

4. Consent Agenda 
A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session, August 14, 2018 
B. Claims 
C. July Revenues 
D. July Treasurer Report 
E. Trail Improvements Project, All American Concrete, Change Order Number 3, $1,203.87 
F. Trail Improvements Project, All American Concrete, Pay Request Number 3, $17,334.46 
G. Liquor License Renewal, Beer Burger 
H. Liquor License Renewal, Zio Johno’s 
I. Liquor License Renewal, Gasby’s  

 
5. Public Comment 

 
6. City Planner Report 

 
7. City Engineer Report  

 
8. City Attorney Report  

 
9. Assistant City Administrator Report  

 
10. City Administrator Report  

 
11. Mayor Report  

A. Proclamation of September as Library Card Sign Up Month 
 



City of North Liberty – 2018                   Updated: August 23, 2018 2:30 p.m. 
Page: 2of Nor 
 
 
 

12. Rezoning – Golf View Commercial Part 1, Lot 2 
A. Third consideration and adoption of Ordinance Number 2018-08, An Ordinance amending 

Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by amending the use regulations on 
property owned by Streb Investment Partnership LC located in North Liberty, Iowa to those 
set forth in the Municipal Code for the C-2-B Commercial District  

 
13. Rezoning – Golf View Commercial Part 2, Lot 14 

A. Third consideration and adoption of Ordinance Number 2018-09, An Ordinance amending 
Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by amending the use regulations on 
property owned by Streb Investment Partnership LC located in North Liberty, Iowa to those 
set forth in the Municipal Code for the C-2-B Commercial District  
 

14. The Preserve 
A. Remove from the table 
B. Staff and Commission recommendations 
C. Applicant presentation 
D. Resolution Number 2018-110, A Resolution approving the Preliminary Plat Agreement 

between the City of North Liberty and Watts Group Development, Inc. that establishes the 
terms and conditions under which a Preliminary Plat will be approved for The Preserve in the 
City of North Liberty, Iowa  

E. Resolution Number 2018-111, A Resolution approving the Preliminary Plat of The Preserve, 
North Liberty, Iowa   

 
15. Police Department Building Project 

A. Public Hearing regarding the plans, specifications, estimate of cost for the Police Department 
Building Project   

B. Resolution Number 2018-115, A Resolution finally approving and confirming plans, 
specifications and estimate of cost for the Police Department Building Project  
 

16. 2018A Bond Sale 
A. Public Hearing on proposal to enter into an Essential Purpose Loan Agreement and to borrow 

money thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $4,450,000 
B. Public Hearing on a proposal to enter into a Ranshaw Loan Agreement and to borrow money 

thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $210,000 
C. Resolution Number 2018-116, A Resolution taking additional action on proposals to enter 

into General Obligation Loan Agreements  
 

17. Forevergreen Road Project 
A. Resolution Number 2018-117, A Resolution approving the Temporary Easement Purchase 

Agreement for the Forevergreen Road Project (Project: IMN-380-6(344)2—OE-52) – 
Keystone North Liberty 

B. Resolution Number 2018-118, A Resolution approving the Purchase Agreement and 
Administrative Settlement for the Forevergreen Road Project (Project: IMN-380-6(344)2—
OE-52) – Bartel Ruba and Andrea Ruba 

C. Resolution Number 2018-119, A Resolution approving the Purchase Agreement and 
Administrative Settlement for the Forevergreen Road Project (Project: IMN-380-6(344)2—
OE-52) – Thomas Dornbush and Carol Dornbush 



City of North Liberty – 2018                   Updated: August 23, 2018 2:30 p.m. 
Page: 3of Nor 
 
 
 

D. Resolution Number 2018-120, A Resolution approving the Purchase Agreement and 
Administrative Settlement for the Forevergreen Road Project (Project: IMN-380-6(344)2—
OE-52) – Brian Wayson and Sheila Wayson 

E. Resolution Number 2018-121, A Resolution approving the Purchase Agreement and 
Administrative Settlement for the Forevergreen Road Project (Project: IMN-380-6(344)2—
OE-52) – Arthur Chipman and Coleen Chipman  

F. Resolution Number 2018-122, A Resolution approving the Purchase Agreement and 
Administrative Settlement for the Forevergreen Road Project (Project: IMN-380-6(344)2—
OE-52) – Julia Oxley and Nicholas Oxley 

 
18. Old Business 
 
19. New Business 

 
20. Adjournment 
 



 

 
 

Consent Agenda 
 



 

City of North Liberty – 2018   
Page: 1 
 
 
, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

 Minutes (Not official until approved by the City Council) 

North Liberty City Council 
August 14, 2018 
Regular Session 

City Council Chambers  
1 Quail Creek Circle 

 
Call to order   
Mayor Terry Donahue called the August 14, 2018 Regular Session of the North Liberty City Council 
to order at 6:30 p.m. Councilors present:  Chris Hoffman, Sarah Madsen, Annie Pollock and Jim 
Sayre; absent: Chris Hoffman, Jennifer Goings. 
 
Others present: Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Scott Peterson, Dean Wheatley, Evan Runkle and 
other interested parties.  
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Madsen moved, Sayre seconded to approve the agenda. After discussion, the vote was all ayes. 
Agenda approved.  

Consent Agenda 
Pollock moved, Madsen seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including the City Council 
Minutes from the Regular Session, July 24, 2018; City Council Minutes from the Special Session on 
August 7, 2018; the attached list of Claims; Phase I Water System Improvements Div III – Well 
Construction and Rehabilitation, Project Acceptance, Gingerich Well and Pump Service, LLC; Phase I 
Water System Improvements Div III – Well Construction and Rehabilitation, Pay Application 
Number 15, Gingerich Well and Pump Service, LLC, $142,437.89; Front Street Improvements 
Project, Change Order Number 2, Dave Schmitt Construction, $3,533.05; Front Street Improvements 
Project, Pay Application Number 5, Dave Schmitt Construction, $151,131.32; Highway 965 Project 
Phase 3, Change Order Number 3, Streb Construction Co., Inc., $11,433.38; Highway 965 Project 
Phase 3, Change Order Number 4, Streb Construction Co., Inc., Road Opening Bonus; Highway 965 
Project Phase 3, Pay Application Number 4, Streb Construction Co., Inc., $713,953.36; Kansas 
Avenue RISE Improvements Project, Streb Construction, Change Order Number 1, $25,546.78; 
Kansas Avenue RISE Improvements Project, Streb Construction, Pay Application Number 3, 
$479,822.93; and Phase I Water System Improvements, Division I – Water Treatment Plant, Pay 
Application Number 22, Portzen Construction, Inc., $640,739.35 (including early release of 
retainage).  After discussion, the vote was all ayes. Consent Agenda approved.  

 
Councilor Jennifer Goings arrived at 6:31 p.m. 
 
Public Comment 



City of North Liberty – 2018   
Page: 2of Nor 
 
 
 

The owners of The Leaderboard, indoor golf facility and sports bar, located at 680 Meade Drive 
presented information regarding their upcoming opening.   
 
City Planner Report 
The Mayor thanked City Planner Dean Wheatley for facilitating the joint meeting. 
 
City Engineer Report  
Heiar reported for the City Engineer that the Front Street Project is very close to complete. The 
Ranshaw/965 Project is moving along nicely.  Zeller Street is scheduled to be open Tuesday, 
weather permitting.  Paving has started on the Kansas Ave Project.  Council discussed the report 
with Heiar. 
 
City Attorney Report  
City Attorney Scott Peterson had no report, but offered to answer questions.   
 
Assistant City Administrator Report  
Assistant City Administrator Tracey Mulcahey reported on City Scape publication, Summer Lunch 
Finale, Back 2 School Bash and Iowa Great Places redesignation.  
 
City Administrator Report  
City Administrator Ryan Heiar reported the City has not yet closed on dog park land. Eight 
applications were received for the City Attorney position.  The Mayor and Heiar are starting the 
hiring process tomorrow.  There is a reception on August 28 in the Council vestibule from 4 – 6 p.m.  
 
Mayor Report  
Mayor Terry Donahue reported that he, Gerry Kuhl, Heiar and Wheatley met with Yellow Cab.  The 
County REAP Committee voted to send Iowa City and Coralville’s applications on to the State REAP.    
 
Storm Drain Art Program 
Jillian Miller presented a summary of the program.  Mayor Donahue recognized the artists 
responsible for painting the storm drain art projects and presented them with certificates of 
recognition. 
 
Recreation Center Rates 
Council discussed fees.  Recreation Director Shelly Simpson presented additional information.  
Goings moved, Madsen seconded to approve Resolution Number 2018-106, A Resolution approving 
the Recreation Fee Structure.  The vote was: ayes – Sayre, Pollock, Goings, Madsen; nays – none.  
Motion carried.  
 
Rezoning – Golf View Commercial Part 1, Lot 2 
Pollock moved, Madsen seconded to approve the second consideration of Ordinance Number 2018-
08, An Ordinance amending Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by amending the 
use regulations on property owned by Streb Investment Partnership LC located in North Liberty, 
Iowa to those set forth in the Municipal Code for the C-2-B Commercial District.  The vote was: ayes 
– Pollock, Sayre, Goings, Madsen; nays -none.  Motion carried.    
 
Rezoning – Golf View Commercial Part 2, Lot 14 
Madsen moved, Goings seconded to approve the second consideration of Ordinance Number 2018-
09, An Ordinance amending Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by amending the 
use regulations on property owned by Streb Investment Partnership LC located in North Liberty, 



City of North Liberty – 2018   
Page: 3of Nor 
 
 
 

Iowa to those set forth in the Municipal Code for the C-2-B Commercial District. The vote was: ayes 
– Goings, Madsen, Pollock, Sayre; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Penn and Front Street Improvements Project 
Heiar presented information on the project. Madsen moved, Pollock seconded to approve 
Resolution Number 2018-107, A Resolution approving and ratifying the purchase of a parcel from 
BSquare Properties, LLC for the Penn Street and Front Street Project (490 N. Front Street).  The 
vote was: ayes - Goings, Madsen, Sayre, Pollock; nays – none. Motion carried 
 
Madsen moved, Sayre seconded to approve Resolution Number 2018-108, A Resolution approving 
and ratifying the purchase of a parcel from BSquare Properties, LLC for the Penn Street and Front 
Street Project (610 N. Front Street).  The vote was: ayes – Sayre, Goings, Pollock, Madsen; nays – 
none. Motion carried.  
 
Goings moved, Madsen seconded to approve Resolution Number 2018-109, A Resolution approving 
and ratifying the purchase of a parcel from Isaac J. Sanchez and Mary B. Maro-Sanchez for the Penn 
Street and Front Street Project (585 N. Front Street).  The vote was: ayes – Sayre, Goings, Madsen, 
Pollock; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
The Preserve 
Wheatley presented the Preliminary Plat application and reported that Staff and Commission 
recommend approval with no conditions.  
 
Duane Musser, Watts Group Development, was present on behalf of the applicant and additional 
information on the development.   
 
Goings moved to approve Resolution Number 2018-110, A Resolution approving the Preliminary 
Plat Agreement between the City of North Liberty and Watts Group Development, Inc. that 
establishes the terms and conditions under which a Preliminary Plat will be approved for The 
Preserve in the City of North Liberty, Iowa.   The motion died for lack of a second.  
 
Madsen moved, Goings seconded to table the agenda items relating to The Preserve.  The vote was: 
ayes - Madsen, Pollock, Goings; nays – Sayre. Motion carried.  
 
2018A Bond Sale 
Heiar presented information on the bond sale.  Pollock moved, Madsen seconded to approve 
Resolution Number 2018-112, A Resolution setting the date for public hearings on proposals to 
enter into General Obligation Loan Agreements and to borrow money thereunder. The vote was: 
ayes – Madsen, Goings, Sayre, Pollock; nays – none.  Motion carried.  
  
Heiar presented Madsen moved, Pollock seconded to approve Resolution Number 2018-113, A 
Resolution approving the Engagement Letter between the City of North Liberty and Dorsey & 
Whitney LLP regarding Bond Counsel Services for the General Obligation Corporate Purpose Bond 
Sale, Series 2018A. The vote was: ayes – Madsen, Sayre, Pollock, Goings; nays – none. Motion 
carried.  
 
Reimbursement Resolution 
Heiar presented information regarding the resolution.  Pollock moved, Sayre seconded to approve 
Resolution Number 2018-114, A Resolution relating to the financing of certain proposed projects to 
be undertaken by the City of North Liberty, Iowa; establishing compliance with reimbursement 



City of North Liberty – 2018   
Page: 4of Nor 
 
 
 

bond regulations under the Internal Revenue Code. The vote was: ayes – Pollock, Goings, Madsen, 
Sayre; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Initiative Goals 
Heiar presented an update on the progress on Council initiatives.  Council requested a work session 
for RFP for the plan and to discuss revising goals.   
 
Old Business 
Councilor Pollock thanked the Library for kids’ activities at Porchfest.  She presented Centennial 
Park feedback.  Councilor Madsen asked about benches being installed at Centennial Park. Heiar 
reported that benches have been installed.  
 
New Business 
Councilor Pollock reported that Salute to Summer is this Saturday.  Pollock reported that Johnson 
County Livable Community Aging Policy Board will be hosting an event on 10/21 from 10 – 1. 
 
Adjournment 
At 7:31 p.m., Mayor Donahue adjourned the meeting.   

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
_________________________________________ 
Terry L. Donahue, Mayor    Attest: 
 
       ________________________________________________ 
       Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 
 



 
                          JULY 31ST, 2018
 
                                         MONTH-TO-DATE   YEAR-TO-DATE
                                            BALANCE         BALANCE
________________________________________________________________________
  010-GENERAL FUND                         418,404.54      418,404.54
  011-FIRE EQUIPMENT CAPITA                  5,595.11        5,595.11
  012-LIBRARY CAPITAL FUND                       6.81            6.81
  013-RECREATION CAPITAL FU                    222.63          222.63
  014-POLICE CAPITAL FUND                    1,659.40        1,659.40
  015-TRANSPORTATION IMPACT                      0.00            0.00
  016-STORMWATER IMPACT FEE                     14.50           14.50
  017-TREE PROGRAM                               0.00            0.00
  018-PARK CAPITAL FUND                      5,250.00        5,250.00
  019-YOUTH SPORTS SCHOLARS                  1,200.96        1,200.96
  020-EQUIPMENT REVOLVING                       83.90           83.90
  021-TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQ                      6.70            6.70
  022-LIBRARY TAG                                0.00            0.00
  023-LIBRARY ENDOWMENT                          0.00            0.00
  024-DRUG TASK FORCE                          397.47          397.47
  025-POLICE SEIZED FUNDS                        0.00            0.00
  026-HOTEL/MOTEL TAX                           34.48           34.48
  060-ROAD USE TAX FUND                    174,513.59      174,513.59
  061-STREET CAPITAL PROJEC                 12,333.96       12,333.96
  062-IJOBS STREETS                              0.00            0.00
  090-TIF FUND                              26,466.07       26,466.07
  110-DEBT SERVICE FUND                      2,642.85        2,642.85
  210-TRUST AND AGENCY                       4,121.77        4,121.77
  280-CUSTOMER DEPOSITS                     33,470.00       33,470.00
  310-COMMUNITY CENTER II C                      0.00            0.00
  311-FRONT STREET RECONSTR                      0.00            0.00
  312-CHERRY STREET RECONST                      0.00            0.00
  313-TIF PROJECTS                             298.96          298.96
  314-ENTRYWAY DEVELOPMENT                      20.09           20.09
  315-HIGHWAY 965 IMPROVEME                      0.00            0.00
  316-COMMUNITY CENTER PHAS                      0.00            0.00
  317-TRAIL PROJECTS                             0.00            0.00
  318-EC DEVELOPMENT PROJEC                     41.24           41.24
  319-PENN STREET IMPROVEME                      0.00            0.00
  320-LIBERTY CENTER PROJEC                      0.00            0.00
  321-LAND/FACILITIES                            0.00            0.00
  322-LIBRARY BUILDING FUND                     18.84           18.84
  323-LIBERTY CENTRE BLUES/                      0.00            0.00
  324-RANSHAW HOUSE PROJECT                      0.00            0.00
  510-WATER FUND                           395,662.58      395,662.58
  511-WATER CAPITAL RESERVE                  6,666.66        6,666.66
  512-WATER SINKING FUND                   113,348.75      113,348.75
  513-WATER BOND RESERVE                         0.00            0.00
  514-WATER CAPITAL PROJECT                      0.00            0.00
  520-SEWER FUND                           416,070.89      416,070.89
  521-SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE                 40,416.67       40,416.67
  522-SEWER SINKING FUND                   192,099.08      192,099.08
  523-WASTEWATER TREATMENT                       0.00            0.00
  524-SEWER TRUNK AND I&I                    2,000.00        2,000.00
  525-SEWER DEBT SERVICE RE                      0.00            0.00
  530-STORMWATER MANAGEMENT                 17,811.46       17,811.46
  532-STORMWATER SINKING FU                      0.00            0.00
________________________________________________________________________

GRAND TOTAL REVENUE                      1,870,879.96    1,870,879.96



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

A B C D E

07/01/2018 07/31/2018

GENERAL 8,357,702.03 361,626.95 1,272,113.44 7,447,215.54

SPECIAL REVENUE 2,844,318.07 205,101.43 88,647.18 2,960,772.32

DEBT SERVICE 262,074.23 2,642.85 0.00 264,717.08

CAPITAL PROJECTS -5,034,802.51 12,713.09 1,461,425.97 -6,483,515.39

WATER ENTERPRISE 3,478,681.22 545,559.97 558,591.96 3,465,649.23

WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE 5,412,890.94 645,634.72 573,949.71 5,484,575.95

STORM WATER ENTERPRISE 195,893.11 18,136.34 14,816.96 199,212.49

TOTAL 15,516,757.09 1,791,415.35 3,969,545.22 13,338,627.22

CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY

TREASURER'S REPORT

July 31, 2018

BALANCE 
FORWARD BALANCE ENDINGREVENUE EXPENSEFUNDS







License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: 575 LLC

Name of Business (DBA): BEERBURGER

Address of Premises: 575 CAMERON WAY 

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 631-4909

Mailing 555 CAMERON WAY SUITE 3

City NORTH LIBERTY Zip: 52317

)

Contact Person

Name JOHN BURCHERT

Phone: (319) 631-4909 Email JOHN@MAINGREDIENT.COM

Status of Business

BusinessType: Limited Liability Company

Corporate ID Number: XXXXXXXXX Federal Employer ID XXXXXXXXX

Insurance Company Information

Effective Date: 09/01/2018

Expiration Date: 08/31/2019

Classification Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Catering Privilege

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Outdoor Service

Sunday Sales

JOHN BURCHERT

First Name: JOHN Last Name: BURCHERT

City: IOWA CITY State: Iowa Zip: 52245

Position: MGR

% of Ownership: 80.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

ROBERT THOMPSON

First Name: ROBERT Last Name: THOMPSON

City: IOWA CITY State: Iowa Zip: 52240

Position: MGR

% of Ownership: 20.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 LC0043064 



p y

Policy Effective Date: 09/01/2018 Policy Expiration 09/01/2019

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

Insurance Company: Illinois Casualty Co



 
 

      North Liberty Police Department 

                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 

June 25, 2018 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:    Beer Burger 

575 Cameron Way                                                                                                                                            
North Liberty, IA  52317 

   
Owners:  John Burchert    (DOB: 1976) 
    Robert Thompson  (DOB: 1982) 
 
The North Liberty Police department does not have any documented contacts for the above 
owners or the business regarding their liquor license. 
   
I recommend the license be granted. 
 
This record check was conducted by Sergeant Chris Shine.    
 
 

   



City of North Liberty
Alcoholic Beverage Permit 

Chapter 120 of the Municipal Code

Legal Name of Applicant:          

Name of Business (DBA):

Address of Business:

Business Phone & Email:

________________________________________________________________

City of North Liberty: 

The above referenced property is located within a zoning district that permits the sale or 
consumption of alcoholic beverage.

City Official         
__________________________________________________________________________

North Liberty Fire Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with International Fire Code. . 

Fire Inspector                            
__________________________________________________________________________

Johnson County Health Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with Johnson County Public Health 
requirements. 

Johnson County Public Health Official   
__________________________________________________________________________

State of Iowa ABD License: ____________________ North Liberty Permit: _____________License Expiration Date: _______________            
                                         

The Municipal Code requires approval from the following City and County Departments.

Beer Burger

575 Cameron Way North Liberty IA
john@mainingredient.com 319-631-4909

Tom Palmer
Digitally signed by Tom Palmer 
DN: cn=Tom Palmer, o=City of North Liberty, 
ou=Building Safety, email=tpalmer@ci.north-liberty.ia.us, 
c=US 
Date: 2018.07.17 15:09:21 -05'00'







Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection
Inspection Date: 8/20/2018 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 14:15 Time Out: 14:43
Authorized Date: Not Author By:

Occupancy: Beer Burger
Occupancy ID: KYOD01

Address: 575 Cameron WAY  Apt/Suite #Suite #1
North Liberty IA 52317

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.3

Electrical Rooms / Electrical Wiring

Electrical Panels, Junction Boxes & Outlet Boxes - No Openings or Exposed Wiring

Status: FAIL
Notes: Sprinkler room, remove exposed wiring.

605.6 Unapproved conditions. Open junction boxes and open-wiring splices shall be prohibited. Approved covers shall be provided for all switch and electrical 
outlet boxes.

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Next Inspection Date: 09/19/2018 Reinspection

Page 1 of 4Printed on 08/20/18 at 14:52:55



No Extension Cords

Status: FAIL
Notes: Outside patio; remove extension cord to patio lights. Must be plugged directly into outlet. Was noted last inspection.
Sprinkler room; remove extension to heat tape. Must be plugged directly into outlet.

605.5 Extension cords. Extension cords and flexible cords shall not be a substitute for permanent wiring. Extension cords and flexible cords shall not be 
affixed to structures, extended through walls, ceilings or floors, or under doors or floor coverings, nor shall such cords be subject to environmental damage or 
physical impact. Extension cords shall be used only with portable appliances.

Fire Alarm System

Manual Pull Station Accessible & Unobstructed

Status: FAIL
Notes: Sprinkler room. Remove storage. 

907.4.2.6 Unobstructed and unobscured. Manual fire alarm boxes shall be accessible, unobstructed, unobscured and visible at all times.

Page 2 of 4Printed on 08/20/18 at 14:52:55



Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

No Additional time recordedNotes:

Total Additional Time: 0 minutes

Total Time: 28 minutes
Inspection Time: 28 minutes

Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

Miscellaneous

No Other Unsafe Conditions 

Status: FAIL
Notes: Fryers outside of the kitchen hood cannot be used. Was noted on last inspection. Use was discontinued during this 
inspection. Use of fyers in future will result in penality.

110.4 Abatement. The owner, the owner’s authorized agent, operator or occupant of a building or premises deemed unsafe by the fire code official shall abate 
or cause to be abated or corrected such unsafe conditions either by repair, rehabilitation, demolition or other approved corrective action.

Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): None on file
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 08/20/2018 14:45

Page 3 of 4Printed on 08/20/18 at 14:52:55



Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Thomas brantley on 08/20/2018 14:46

Page 4 of 4Printed on 08/20/18 at 14:52:55



License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: zio johno's, Inc.

Name of Business (DBA): zio johno's spaghetti house

Address of Premises: 780 community dr. #1

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County: Johnson

Business (319) 626-3232

Mailing 383 abbotsford rd 

City cedar rapids Zip: 52403

)

Contact Person

Name Eli Khairallah

Phone: (319) 721-6503 Email eli@ziojohnosonline.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: XXXXXXXXX Federal Employer ID XXXXXXXXX

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: 09/10/2018 Policy Expiration 09/10/2019

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Date Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

Insurance Company: Society Insurance

Effective Date: 09/10/2018

Expiration Date: 09/09/2019

Classification Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class B Wine Permit

Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial)

Sunday Sales

eli khairallah

First Name: eli Last Name: khairallah

City: cedar rapids State: Iowa Zip: 52403

Position: owner

% of Ownership: 100.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 LC0040325 



City of North Liberty
Alcoholic Beverage Permit 

Chapter 120 of the Municipal Code

Legal Name of Applicant:          

Name of Business (DBA):

Address of Business:

Business Phone & Email:

________________________________________________________________

City of North Liberty: 

The above referenced property is located within a zoning district that permits the sale or 
consumption of alcoholic beverage.

City Official         
__________________________________________________________________________

North Liberty Fire Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with International Fire Code. . 

Fire Inspector                            
__________________________________________________________________________

Johnson County Health Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with Johnson County Public Health 
requirements. 

Johnson County Public Health Official   
__________________________________________________________________________

State of Iowa ABD License: ____________________ North Liberty Permit: _____________License Expiration Date: _______________            
                                         

The Municipal Code requires approval from the following City and County Departments.

Zio Johno's

780 Community Drive Suites 1 & 2-N. Liberty,IA

eli@ziojohnosonline.com

Tom Palmer Digitally signed by Tom Palmer 
DN: cn=Tom Palmer, o=City of North Liberty, ou=Building 
Safety, email=tpalmer@ci.north-liberty.ia.us, c=US 
Date: 2018.07.17 15:22:34 -05'00'







 
 

      North Liberty Police Department 

                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 

July 24, 2018 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   Zio Johno’s 
    780 Community Drive 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
   
Owner:  Eli Khairallah  (DOB: 1960) 

 
A record check of the above business and owners shows no past incidents with the North 

Liberty Police Department that could affect the liquor license.   This department does not 

have any concerns with the renewal of the liquor license.    

I recommend the license be granted. 
 
Sergeant Chris Shine 
 
 

   



Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection
Inspection Date: 8/20/2018 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 13:51 Time Out: 14:08
Authorized Date: Not Authorized By:

Occupancy: Zio Johno's Spaghetti House
Occupancy ID: ZIOJ02

Address: 780 Community DR  Apt/Suite #1
North Liberty IA 52317

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.3

Emergency Lights & Exit Signs

Emergency Lighting - Illumination

Status: FAIL
Notes: Behind Main counter & kitchen; emergency light is flashing on both, check battery.

1008.3.4 Duration. The emergency power system shall provide power for a duration of not less than 90 minutes and shall consist of storage batteries, unit 
equipment or an on-site generator. 

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Next Inspection Date: 09/19/2018 Reinspection

Page 1 of 3Printed on 08/20/18 at 14:14:22



Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

No Additional time recordedNotes:

Total Additional Time: 0 minutes

Total Time: 17 minutes
Inspection Time: 17 minutes

Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

Combustible, General & Outside Storage 

Oily Rags Stored in Approved Containers

Status: FAIL
Notes: Used approved container for rags used to cleaning hood and grease.

304.3.1 Spontaneous ignition. Materials susceptible to spontaneous ignition, such as oily rags, shall be stored in a listed disposal container. Contents of such 
containers shall be removed and disposed of daily.

Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): None on file
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 08/20/2018 14:08

Page 2 of 3Printed on 08/20/18 at 14:14:22



Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Pedro ramirez on 08/20/2018 14:11

Page 3 of 3Printed on 08/20/18 at 14:14:22



License Application (Applicant

Name of Applicant: J.M.A.C. Enterprises, Inc.

Name of Business (DBA): Gasby's II

Address of Premises: 1 Hawkeye Drive

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

State IA

County:  Please Select

Business (319) 626-7990

Mailing 1 Hawkeye Drive

City North Liberty Zip: 52317

)

Contact Person

Name Shane Jacob McCusker

Phone: (319) 325-3899 Email jakemccusker@hotmail.com

Status of Business

BusinessType: Privately Held Corporation

Corporate ID Number: XXXXXXXXX Federal Employer ID XXXXXXXXX

Insurance Company Information

Policy Effective Date: Policy Expiration 

Dram Cancel Date:

Outdoor Service Effective Outdoor Service Expiration 

Temp Transfer Effective Date Temp Transfer Expiration Date:

Bond Effective 

Insurance Company:

Effective Date: 10/01/2018

Expiration Date: 09/30/2019

Classification Class C Beer Permit (BC)

Term:12 months

Privileges:

Ownership

Class B Native Wine Permit

Class C Beer Permit (BC)

Sunday Sales

Shane Jacob McCusker

First Name: Shane Jacob Last Name: McCusker

City: North Liberty State: Iowa Zip: 52317

Position: owner

% of Ownership: 100.00% U.S. Citizen: Yes

 BC0030442 





City of North Liberty
Alcoholic Beverage Permit 

Chapter 120 of the Municipal Code

Legal Name of Applicant:          

Name of Business (DBA):

Address of Business:

Business Phone & Email:

________________________________________________________________

City of North Liberty: 

The above referenced property is located within a zoning district that permits the sale or 
consumption of alcoholic beverage.

City Official         
__________________________________________________________________________

North Liberty Fire Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with International Fire Code. . 

Fire Inspector                            
__________________________________________________________________________

Johnson County Health Department:

The above referenced property currently complies with Johnson County Public Health 
requirements. 

Johnson County Public Health Official   
__________________________________________________________________________

State of Iowa ABD License: ____________________ North Liberty Permit: _____________License Expiration Date: _______________            
                                         

The Municipal Code requires approval from the following City and County Departments.

JMAC ENTERPRISES
Gasby's
1 Hawkeye Drive North Liberty IA 52317
319-325-3899 jakemccusker@hotmail.com

Tom Palmer
Digitally signed by Tom Palmer 
DN: cn=Tom Palmer, o=City of North Liberty, ou=Building 
Safety, email=tpalmer@ci.north-liberty.ia.us, c=US 
Date: 2018.07.18 06:51:02 -05'00'





 
 

      North Liberty Police Department 

                     5 E Cherry St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626‐5724/Fax: 5743 

         

 

July 24, 2018 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   Gasby’s 
    1 Hawkeye Drive 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
   
Owners:   
1.      Shane J. McCusker  (DOB: 1979)                 
   

 
The North Liberty Police department does not have any documented contacts for the above 
owners or business regarding their liquor license.   
 
I recommend the license be granted. 
 
 
Submitted by Sergeant Chris Shine 

 
 

   



Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection
Inspection Date: 8/20/2018 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 14:54 Time Out: 15:16
Authorized Date: Not Author By:

Occupancy: Gasby's Amoco
Occupancy ID: 995220

Address: 1 Hawkeye DR
North Liberty IA 52317

Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

No Additional time recordedNotes:

Total Additional Time: 0 minutes

Total Time: 22 minutes
Inspection Time: 22 minutes

Inspection Topics:

Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.3

Fire Extinguishers

Fire Extinguisher Monthly Inspection - Initial & Date Tag

Status: FAIL
Notes: Complete.

NFPA 10: Standard for Portable Fire Extinguishers, 2013 Edition, Section 7.2.1.2 Fire extinguishers and Class D extinguishing agents shall be visually 
inspected at intervals not exceeding 31 days. Documentation of the visual inspection shall be recorded on the backside of the inspection tag (Date & Initials) 
or on a log book.

Combustible, General & Outside Storage 

Oily Rags Stored in Approved Containers

Status: FAIL
Notes: Obtain approved container for rags used to clean grease.

304.3.1 Spontaneous ignition. Materials susceptible to spontaneous ignition, such as oily rags, shall be stored in a listed disposal container. Contents of such 
containers shall be removed and disposed of daily.

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Next Inspection Date: 09/19/2018 Liquor License Inspection

Page 1 of 2Printed on 08/20/18 at 15:20:11



Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): None on file
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 08/20/2018 15:19

Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Jake on 08/20/2018 15:19

Page 2 of 2Printed on 08/20/18 at 15:20:11



 

 
 

Mayor Report 
 



 

 

    City of North Liberty 
PROCLAMATION 

 
   Whereas, a library card is the most important card in everyone’s wallet; and 

 
      Whereas, a library card is the most important school supply of all; and 
 
      Whereas, libraries play an important role in the education and development of a             
        community; and 
  
      Whereas, libraries empower all people to pursue their interests, discover their passions and     
        achieve their highest potential as learners and citizens; and 
 
      Whereas, the North Liberty Community Library connects people to information essential for  
        daily living and offers them opportunities for enjoyment and personal growth; and 
 
      Whereas, the North Liberty Community Library actively encourages discovery, learning, and 
        greater participation in community life; and 
 
       Whereas, the North Liberty Community Library contributes to the quality of life in North      
         Liberty by offering opportunities to explore diverse ideas, to exercise imagination, and to          
         express creativity; and 
 
       Whereas, librarians bring communities together, creating welcoming and inclusive spaces  
         for people of all backgrounds to learn together; and 
 
       Whereas, libraries are constantly transforming and expanding their services to meet the  
         needs of the communities they serve; and 
 
       Whereas, libraries promote equity, making digital technology and information equally  
         accessible to all; and 
   
       Now, Therefore, I, Terry Donahue, Mayor of North Liberty, proclaim September to be  

 Library Card Sign-up Month 
         and encourage everyone to sign up for their own library card today.  
                                    
                                                                                        _____________________ 
        TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
        Signed in North Liberty, Iowa 
        this 28th day of August, 2018 

 



 

 
 

Rezoning – Golf View 
Commercial, Part 1, Lot 2 

 



 
June 13, 2018 
 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Request from Streb Investment Partnership LC to approve a commercial rezoning for a .56 
acre property located east of 965-Ranshaw Way south of Hawkeye Drive, from C-2-A to C-2-B.  

(Legal: Golf View Commercial Part 1 Lot 2) 

Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in 
this memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 

Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Scott Peterson, City Attorney 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
Background and Statistics 
 
This request is to rezone property to permit mixed-use development on a single lot that has been 
marketed for sale for some years without success. It is located awkwardly between highway 
commercial use and mobile home park use, where visibility is marginal for commercial development. 
A Good Neighbor meeting was held to allow any interested party an opportunity to comment on this 
rezoning prior to submission, and one adjacent commercial property owner attended to ask 
questions about potential development. No site plan is prepared for this rezoning, and that is 
considered acceptable for these reasons: 
1. The request is a rezoning from one commercial zone to another commercial zone, so it is not 

considered to be a significant change (although the requested district does allow residential uses 
above the ground floor while the existing district does not). 

2. A formal site plan will be required prior to any development on the property.  
3. The owner does not plan to develop the site, but is attempting to enhance its marketability. 

dwheatley
Text Box
Recommended for approval by the Planning Commission at their 7/3/2018 regular meeting.



 
The property is shown as “Commercial with 
Residential” on the Land Use Plan, and so the 
request is consistent with that policy. A concept 
plan for development on the property is not 
required and has not been submitted. 
 
Subdivision Ordinance Provisions Affecting This 
Development 
 
None; it is an existing lot.  
 

Zoning Ordinance Provisions Affecting This 
Development 
 
It should be noted again the main difference 
between the existing zoning district and the 
proposed district is that residential uses are not 
allowed with the current zoning but would be, 
above the ground floor, if the request is approved. 
 
Staff Comments Regarding the Proposed Zoning 
 
Storm water impacts. This is an existing lot in an 

existing subdivision, so storm water management requirements are limited to quality of release, 
which can be treated in several different ways in site plan development. 
 
Street/Traffic impacts. Substantial traffic impacts are not anticipated from this single-lot rezoning 
from one commercial district to another. 
 
Land use impacts and adjacent properties. 
This general area best-suited for urban-scale density, and mixed-use development at this location 
provides a good transition from the more intense commercial use adjacent to Ranshaw Way to the 
mobile home court to the east.  
 
Land use and zoning recommendation.  In rezoning considerations, suitability and compatibility are 
key issues in addition to land use policy. In this case, the site is physically suitable for the 
development proposed, and the mixed-use zone proposed is compatible with surrounding uses.  
 



Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request.  



North Liberty – 2018  Ordinance Number 2018-08 
Page 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2018-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 167 OF THE NORTH 
LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING THE USE 
REGULATIONS ON PROPERTY OWNED BY STREB INVESTMENT 
PARTNERSHIP LC LOCATED IN NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA TO THOSE 
SET FORTH IN THE MUNICIPAL CODE FOR THE C-2-B 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 167 Zoning Code Definitions of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances (2013) is hereby amended by amending the zoning on property legally described as: 
 
C-2-B Zoning 
Lot 2 of Golf View Commercial Subdivision Part One to North Liberty, Iowa, in accordance with the 
plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 34 at Page 17 of the records of the Johnson County Recorder’s 
Office.  Said Lot 2 contains 0.56 acre, and is subject to easements and restrictions of record.  
 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a whole 
or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on July 24, 2018. 
Second reading on August 14, 2018. 
Third and final reading on __________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the City 
Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



North Liberty – 2018  Ordinance Number 2018-08 
Page 2 
 

 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2018-08 in the North Liberty Leader on 
__________.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 





 

 
 

Rezoning – Golf View 
Commercial, Part 2, Lot 

14 
 



 
June 13, 2018 
 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Request from Streb Investment Partnership LC to approve a commercial rezoning for a .8 
acre property located east of 965-Ranshaw Way south of Hawkeye Drive, from C-2-A to C-2-B.  

(Legal: Golf View Commercial Part 2 Lot 14) 

Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in 
this memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 

Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Scott Peterson, City Attorney 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
Background and Statistics 
 
This request is to rezone property to permit mixed-use development on a single lot that has been 
marketed for sale for some years without success. It is located awkwardly between highway 
commercial use and mobile home park use, where visibility is marginal for commercial development. 
A Good Neighbor meeting was held to allow any interested party an opportunity to comment on this 
rezoning prior to submission, and no one from the public attended. No site plan is prepared for this 
rezoning, and that is considered acceptable for these reasons: 
1. The request is a rezoning from one commercial zone to another commercial zone, so it is not 

considered to be a significant change (although the requested district does allow residential uses 
above the ground floor while the existing district does not). 

2. A formal site plan will be required prior to any development on the property.  
3. The owner does not plan to develop the site, but is attempting to enhance its marketability. 

dwheatley
Text Box
Recommended for approval by the Planning Commission at their 7/3/2018 regular meeting.



 
The property is shown as “Commercial with 
Residential” on the Land Use Plan, and so the 
request is consistent with that policy. A concept 
plan for development on the property is not 
required and has not been submitted. 
 
Subdivision Ordinance Provisions Affecting This 
Development 
 
None; it is an existing lot.  
 

Zoning Ordinance Provisions Affecting This 
Development 
 
It should be noted again the main difference 
between the existing zoning district and the 
proposed district is that residential uses are not 
allowed with the current zoning but would be, 
above the ground floor, if the request is approved. 
 
Staff Comments Regarding the Proposed Zoning 
 
Storm water impacts. This is an existing lot in an 

existing subdivision, so storm water management requirements are limited to quality of release, 
which can be treated in several different ways in site plan development. 
 
Street/Traffic impacts. Substantial traffic impacts are not anticipated from this single-lot rezoning 
from one commercial district to another. 
 
Land use impacts and adjacent properties. 
This general area best-suited for urban-scale density, and mixed-use development at this location 
provides a good transition from the more intense commercial use adjacent to Ranshaw Way to the 
mobile home court to the east.  
 
Land use and zoning recommendation.  In rezoning considerations, suitability and compatibility are 
key issues in addition to land use policy. In this case, the site is physically suitable for the 
development proposed, and the mixed-use zone proposed is compatible with surrounding uses.  
 



Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request.  



North Liberty – 2018  Ordinance Number 2018-09 
Page 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2018-09 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 167 OF THE NORTH 
LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING THE USE 
REGULATIONS ON PROPERTY OWNED BY STREB INVESTMENT 
PARTNERSHIP LC LOCATED IN NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA TO THOSE 
SET FORTH IN THE MUNICIPAL CODE FOR THE C-2-B 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 167 Zoning Code Definitions of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances (2013) is hereby amended by amending the zoning on property legally described as: 
 
C-2-B Zoning 
Lot 14 of Golf View Commercial Subdivision - Part Two to North Liberty, Iowa, in accordance with 
the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 36 at Page 190 of the records of the Johnson County Recorder’s 
Office.  Said Lot 14 contains 0.80 acre, and is subject to easements and restrictions of record.  
 
SECTION 2.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 3.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a whole 
or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 4. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on July 24, 2018. 
Second reading on August 14, 2018. 
Third and final reading on __________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the City 
Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



North Liberty – 2018  Ordinance Number 2018-09 
Page 2 
 

 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2018-08 in the North Liberty Leader on 
__________.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 





 

 
 

The Preserve 
 



 
June 27, 2018 
 

Memo 
 
To: North Liberty Planning Commission 
From: Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
Subject: Request from Watts Group to approve a preliminary plat, The Preserve, for property located 
at the southeast corner of St. Andrews Drive and Kansas Avenue. 

Your North Liberty city staff has reviewed the subject submission, and offer comments presented in 
this memo. The staff review team includes the following personnel: 

Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
Tom Palmer, City Building Official 
Scott Peterson, City Attorney 
Kevin Trom, City Engineer 
Dean Wheatley, Planning Director 
 
This request is to subdivide an existing 71.51 acre parcel into 123 single-family, duplex, and multi-
family lots sized to meet requirements of the current zoning application for RS-4, RS-6, RD-10, RD-8, 
and RM-8. It is well served with parks and streets. Centennial Park is adjacent to the east, and trail 
connections are provided from the neighborhood into the park. Kansas Avenue, St. Andrews Drive, 
and Alexander Way are major streets identified on the Major Streets Plan. Significant dedications are 
being made to the City for Alexander Drive (collector street), St Andrews Drive (also a collector 
street), and for a future roundabout at the intersection of those two streets, as part of this plat; and 
fees for sewer and adjacent road improvements will be required. The multi-family lots, 1 and 29, 
require site plan approval prior to development. Accommodations are planned at the southwest 
corner of this plat to allow the continued flow of significant amounts of stormwater originating 
southwest of the property. 
 

RS-4 lot requirements are: 
Width: 80 feet 
Area: 10,000 square feet 
Front Yard Setback: 25 feet (both frontages for 
corner lots) 
Rear Yard Setback: 30 feet 
Side Yard Setbacks: 10 feet 
 

RS-6 lot requirements are: 
Width: 70 feet 
Area: 7,000 square feet 
Front Yard Setback: 25 feet (both frontages for 
corner lots) 
Rear Yard Setback: 30 feet 
Side Yard Setbacks: 8 feet 

dwheatley
Text Box
Recommended for approval by Planning Commission at their meeting on 7/3/2018. Plat was held pending preparation of Preliminary Plat Agreement.



RD-8 lot requirements are: 
Width: 100 feet 
Area: 10,000 square feet, 5,000 per unit 
Front Yard Setback: 25 feet (both frontages for 
corner lots) 
Rear Yard Setback: 30 feet 
Side Yard Setbacks: 10 feet 

RD-10 lot requirements are: 
Width: 80 feet 
Area: 9,000 square feet, 4,500 per unit 
Front Yard Setback: 25 feet (both frontages for 
corner lots) 
Rear Yard Setback: 30 feet 
Side Yard Setbacks: 10 feet 

RM-8 lot requirements are: 
Width: 100 feet 
Area: 5,000 square feet per unit 
Front Yard Setback: 45 feet (both frontages for 
corner lots) 
Rear Yard Setback: 35 feet 
Side Yard Setbacks: 20 feet 
 

 

 
This plat provides for good internal circulation and connection stubs for future development of and 
street connections with property to the south and the property surrounded on three sides by this 
subdivision. The owner has agreed to prepare a landscape plan for the single-family and duplex lots 
with frontage on St. Andrews Drive, and similar plans for the multi-family lots will be reviewed with 
those site plans. A Good Neighbor meeting was held to allow any interested party an opportunity to 
comment on this rezoning prior to submission, and four resident households attended. Various 
concerns were expressed, including storm water management, grading issues, and street extensions 
into adjacent property.  
 
There has been a very good working relationship between the City staff and this developer in finding 
solutions to access, storm water management, and other issues for development. Staff recommends 
approval of the plat subject to the following: 
 
 
Notes: 

 A Preliminary Plat Agreement is required, to include at least the following provisions: 
o Funding for future upgrades to St. Andrews Drive and Kansas Avenue.  
o West Trunk Sewer hookup fees. 
o Definition of lots to be responsible for the maintenance of the pond areas. 
o Landscape plans for Outlot A and Lots 7, 8, and 107 adjacent to St. Andrews Drive. 

 Fees will need to be paid prior to final plat approval. 
 Off-site easements may need to be provided prior to construction plan approval. 
 A site plan for the lot 1 and lot 30 pond will need to provide landscaping in that area. 

 
 

















North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-111 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-111 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF 
THE PRESERVE, NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, the owners, Thomas P. & Linda M. Streb, and the developer, Watts Group 

Development, Inc., have filed with the City Clerk a preliminary plat described in Exhibit A 
which is attached hereto;  
 

WHEREAS, said real estate is owned by the above-named parties and the 
subdivision is being made with free consent and in accordance with the desires of the 
owners; 
 

WHEREAS, said preliminary plat has been examined by the North Liberty Planning 
and Zoning Commission, which did recommend that the preliminary plat described as The 
Preserve be approved with no conditions;  

 
 WHEREAS, said preliminary plat is found to conform with Chapter 354 of the Code 
of Iowa and ordinances of the City of North Liberty. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Preliminary Plat for The Preserve is 
approved.  

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:  
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR  
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above 
was adopted.  
 
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



North Liberty – 2018 Resolution Number 2018-110 
Page 1 
 

Resolution No. 2018-110 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH 
LIBERTY AND WATTS GROUP DEVELOPMENT, INC. 
THAT ESTABLISHES THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
UNDER WHICH A PRELIMINARY PLAT WILL BE 
APPROVED FOR THE PRESERVE IN THE CITY OF 
NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions for the approval of the Preliminary 
Plat of The Preserve have been set forth in an Agreement between the City of 
North Liberty and Watts Group Development, Inc.; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Agreement between the 

City of North Liberty and Watts Group Development, Inc. is approved for the 
Preliminary Plat of The Preserve, North Liberty, Iowa. 

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:  
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR  
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a 
meeting of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other 
proceedings, the above was adopted.  
 
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 





 

 
 

Police Department 
Building Project 

 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-115 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-115 
 
RESOLUTION FINALLY APPROVING AND CONFIRMING PLANS, 
SPECIFICATIONS, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT BUILDING PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, has heretofore given 

preliminary approval to the plans, specifications, and estimate of cost (the “Contract 
Documents”) for the proposed Police Department Building Project (the “Project”), as 
described in the notice of hearing on the Contract Documents for the Project and the taking 
of bids therefor; and 

WHEREAS, a hearing has been held on the Contract Documents on August 28, 2018; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North Liberty, 
Iowa, as follows: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby delegates to the City Clerk and/or the Project Architect 
the duty of receiving bids for the Project until 2:00 o’clock p.m. on September 27, 2018 at the 
City Administration Building in the City.  At such time and place the City Clerk and/or the 
Project Architect open such bids received and announce the results thereof.  The City Council 
will consider bids received at the City Council meeting to be held on October 9, 2018 at 6:30 
p.m. at City Council Chambers in the City. 
 
Section 2. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to give notice of the hearing and 
taking of bids by publication as required by law, which publication shall be made not less 
than 4 and not more than 45 days prior to the date for receipt of bids and not less than 4 and 
not more than 20 days prior to the date of the said hearing.  The said notice shall be in the 
form substantially as attached to this resolution. 
 
Section 3. “Pursuant to Section 1.150-2 of the Income Tax Regulations (the “Regulations”) of 
the Internal Revenue Service, the City declares (a) that it intends to undertake the Project, 
(b) that other than (i) expenditures to be paid or reimbursed from sources other than the 
issuance of bonds, notes or other obligations (the “Bonds”), or (ii) expenditures made not 
earlier than 60 days prior to the date of this Resolution or a previous intent resolution of the 
City, or (iii) expenditures amounting to the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceeds of the 
Bonds, or (iv) expenditures constituting preliminary expenditures as defined in 
Section 1.150-2(f)(2) of the Regulations, no expenditures for the Project have heretofore 
been made by the City and no expenditures will be made by the City until after the date of 
this Resolution or a prior intent resolution of the City, and (c) that the City reasonably 
expects to reimburse the expenditures made for costs of the City out of the proceeds of the 
Bonds.  This declaration is a declaration of official intent adopted pursuant to Section 1.150-
2 of the Regulations. 
 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-115 
Page 2 

Section 4. The Contract Documents referred to in the preamble hereof are hereby finally 
approved, and the prior action of the City Council giving preliminary approval is hereby 
finally confirmed, and the Project, as provided for in the Contract Documents, is necessary 
and desirable. 
 
Section 5. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 



 

 
 

2018A Bond Sale 
 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-116 
Page 1 
 

MINUTES TO HOLD HEARINGS ON GENERAL 
OBLIGATION LOAN AGREEMENTS AND 
COMBINE LOAN AGREEMENTS 

421033-73 

North Liberty, Iowa 

August 28, 2018 

The City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, met on August 28, 2018, at _______ o’clock 
___.m. at the ______________________, North Liberty, Iowa.  The Mayor presided and the roll was called 
showing the following members of the City Council present and absent: 

Present:    

Absent:   . 

This being the time and place specified for taking action on the proposal to enter into the 
Essential Purpose Loan Agreement and to borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to 
exceed $4,450,000, the City Clerk announced that no written objections had been placed on file.  
Whereupon, the Mayor called for any written or oral objections, and there being none, the Mayor 
declared the public hearing closed. 

 
This also being the time and place specified for taking action on the proposal to enter into 

the Ranshaw Loan Agreement and to borrow money thereunder in a principal amount not to 
exceed $210,000, the City Clerk announced that no petition had been filed asking that the question 
of entering into the loan agreement be submitted to the registered voters of the City, and that the 
City Council may proceed with the authorization of the loan agreement.  Whereupon, the Mayor 
called for any written or oral objections, and there being none, the Mayor declared the public 
hearing closed. 

 
After due consideration and discussion, Council Member _____________ introduced the 

following resolution and moved its adoption, seconded by Council Member ________________.  The 
Mayor put the question upon the adoption of said resolution, and the roll being called, the following 
Council Members voted: 

Ayes:    

Nays:   . 

Whereupon, the Mayor declared the resolution duly adopted as hereinafter set out. 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-116 
Page 2 
 

Resolution No.2018-116 
 
RESOLUTION TAKING ADDITIONAL ACTION ON PROPOSALS TO ENTER INTO 
GENERAL OBLIGATION LOAN AGREEMENTS AND COMBINING LOAN 
AGREEMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty (the “City”), in Johnson County, State of Iowa, 
heretofore proposed to enter into a loan agreement (the “Essential Purpose Loan Agreement”), 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa, and to borrow money 
thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $4,450,000 for the purpose of paying the costs, to 
that extent, of constructing street improvements and incidental sidewalk, storm water drainage and 
water system improvements; installing street lighting and signalization improvements; and 
constructing and installing parking, drainage and landscaping improvements at an existing 
municipal park, and pursuant to law and a notice duly published, the City Council has held a public 
hearing on such proposal on August 28, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the City also proposed to enter into a loan agreement (the “Ranshaw Loan 
Agreement” and together with the Essential Purpose Loan Agreement, the “Loan Agreements”), 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 384.24A of the Code of Iowa, and to borrow money 
thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $210,000 for the purpose of paying the costs, to that 
extent, of constructing improvements for the restoration of Ranshaw House, has published notice of 
the proposed action and has held a hearing thereon, on August 28, 2018, and as of such date, no 
petition had been filed with the City asking that the question of entering into the Ranshaw Loan 
Agreement be submitted to the registered voters of the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 384.28 of the Code of Iowa, the City 
Council intends to combine the Loan Agreements in to a single loan agreement (the “Loan 
Agreement”);  

 NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of North Liberty, Iowa, as 
follows: 

Section 1. The Loan Agreements are hereby combined into the Loan Agreement.  The 
City Council hereby determines to enter into the Loan Agreement in the future and orders that 
General Obligation Bonds be issued at such time, in evidence thereof.  The City Council further 
declares that this resolution constitutes the “additional action” required by Section 384.24A of the 
Code of Iowa. 

Section 2. Further action with respect to the Loan Agreements is hereby adjourned to 
the City Council meeting scheduled for September 11, 2018. 

Section 3.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-116 
Page 3 
 

Section 4. This resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval, as provided by law. 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above 
was adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-116 
Page 4 
 

 

• • • • • 

At the conclusion of the meeting, and upon motion and vote, the City Council adjourned. 

  
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 

Attest: 

        
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK  

 

 

 

 



North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-116 
Page 5 
 

ATTESTATION CERTIFICATE 

STATE OF IOWA 
COUNTY OF JOHNSON   SS: 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, do hereby certify that as such I 
have in my possession or have access to the complete corporate records of the City and of its 
Council and officers and that I have carefully compared the transcript hereto attached with those 
corporate records and that the transcript hereto attached is a true, correct and complete copy of all 
the corporate records relating to the authorization of certain Loan Agreements and that the 
transcript hereto attached contains a true, correct and complete statement of all the measures 
adopted and proceedings, acts and things had, done and performed up to the present time with 
respect thereto. 

WITNESS MY HAND this ________ day of ___________________, 2018. 

  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

 



 

 
 

Forevergreen Road 
Project 

 











North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-117 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-117 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TEMPORARY EASEMENT 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE FOREVERGREEN ROAD 
PROJECT (PROJECT: IMN-380-6(344)2—OE-52) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented with a Temporary Easement 

Purchase Agreement with Keystone North Liberty LC for the acquisition of an easement for 
the Forevergreen Road Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the easement will be purchased for $15,910.00 by the Iowa DOT as a part 

of the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Temporary Easement Purchase 

Agreement for the Forevergreen Road Project is authorized and approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



















North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-118 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-118 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE FOREVERGREEN ROAD PROJECT (PROJECT: IMN-
380-6(344)2—OE-52) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented with a Purchase Agreement with 

Bartel Irvin Ruba and Andrea L. Ruba for the acquisition of property for the Forevergreen 
Road Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property will be purchased for $15,000.00 by the Iowa DOT as a part 

of the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Purchase Agreement for the 

Forevergreen Road Project is authorized and approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

















North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-119 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-119 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE FOREVERGREEN ROAD PROJECT (PROJECT: IMN-
380-6(344)2—OE-52) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented with a Purchase Agreement with 

Thomas L. Dornbush and Carol A. Dornbush for the acquisition of property for the 
Forevergreen Road Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property will be purchased for $10,000.00 by the Iowa DOT as a part 

of the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Purchase Agreement for the 

Forevergreen Road Project is authorized and approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 











North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-120 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-120 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE FOREVERGREEN ROAD PROJECT (PROJECT: IMN-
380-6(344)2—OE-52) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented with a Purchase Agreement with 

Brian Patrick Wayson and Sheila Margaret Wayson for the acquisition of property for the 
Forevergreen Road Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property will be purchased for $5,300.00 by the Iowa DOT as a part 

of the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Purchase Agreement for the 

Forevergreen Road Project is authorized and approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 

















North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-121 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-121 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE FOREVERGREEN ROAD PROJECT (PROJECT: IMN-
380-6(344)2—OE-52) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented with a Purchase Agreement with 

Arthur C. Chipman and Coleen F. Chipman for the acquisition of property for the 
Forevergreen Road Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property will be purchased for $18,380.00 by the Iowa DOT as a part 

of the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Purchase Agreement for the 

Forevergreen Road Project is authorized and approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 













North Liberty – 2018  Resolution Number 2018-121 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2018-121 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE FOREVERGREEN ROAD PROJECT (PROJECT: IMN-
380-6(344)2—OE-52) 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA:  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has been presented with a Purchase Agreement with 

Arthur C. Chipman and Coleen F. Chipman for the acquisition of property for the 
Forevergreen Road Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property will be purchased for $18,380.00 by the Iowa DOT as a part 

of the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Purchase Agreement for the 

Forevergreen Road Project is authorized and approved. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to 

execute said agreement.  
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of August, 2018. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TERRY L. DONAHUE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of 
the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

 
 

Additional Information 
 



 

City of North Liberty  •  3 Quail Creek Circle  •  PO Box 77  •  North Liberty, Iowa 52317  •  319.626.5700  •  fax 319.626.3288  • northlibertyiowa.org 

July Financial Report 
 

July 31, 2018 
 
City staff are pleased to submit the unaudited monthly financial report for the month of July 2018.  
At the end of the month, the City was 8.33% through the budget year.  Total revenues received for 
the month were $1,870,879.96.  Total expenditures for the month were $3,969,031.06.  The total 
cash balance as of July 31, 2018 was $13,338,627.22.   
 
The red line indicates the percentage where the budget area is and blue line is the percentage of the 
budget year.  Any particular area falling approximately 10% below or above the percentage of the 
budget year will be explained below.   
 
Revenues   
The following chart demonstrates the condition of the City’s budgeted revenues as of July 31, 2018:    
 

 

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

General Fund Road Use Tax Water Utility Wastewater
Utility

Storm Water
Utility

Total Budget



 
 

• This chart represents the historical view at the end of the month.   
• The General Fund is below the budget projection at 3.25%. The first installment of 

property taxes, the primary funding source in this fund, will be received in October.   
• Utility revenues are all on track. 
• Overall revenues are below the 8.33% of the fiscal year principally due to property tax 

receipts being later in the fiscal year.  
 
Overall revenues for the fiscal year are $1,870,879.96, 3.64% of the budgeted amount.  
 
Expenditures   
The following chart demonstrates the condition of the City’s budgeted expenditures as of July 31, 
2018:    

 
 

• Health and Social Services is the sole category exceeding the percentage of expenditures for 
the year to date. Most grants for social service programs were made in July.  

 
Year to date total expenditures are $3,969,031.06 or 7.69% of the projected budget amounts. This 
amount is right on par for the portion of the fiscal year completed.   
 
Treasurer’s Report  
Following is the Treasurer’s Report for July.  The General Fund Balance is comprised of more than 
just the 010 General Fund. For accounting purposes of the budget and reporting, other funds such 
as Hotel/Motel Tax, Library Capital, Fire Capital and others are incorporated into the General total.  
The General Fund for operating expenses has a fund balance of $ 5,131,291. The other funds in the 

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%



total shown here are obligated to specific departments or types of activities.  The other funds are 
separated out to keep those funds obligated for future specific types of expenditures.    

 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 

TREASURER'S REPORT 

July 31, 2018 

FUNDS BALANCE 
FORWARD REVENUE  EXPENSE BALANCE 

ENDING 

 
07/01/2018 

  
07/31/2018 

          

GENERAL 8,357,702.03 361,626.95 1,272,113.44 7,447,215.54 

          

SPECIAL REVENUE 2,844,318.07 205,101.43 88,647.18 2,960,772.32 

          

DEBT SERVICE  262,074.23 2,642.85 0.00 264,717.08 

          

CAPITAL PROJECTS -5,034,802.51 12,713.09 1,461,425.97 -6,483,515.39 

          

WATER ENTERPRISE 3,478,681.22 545,559.97 558,591.96 3,465,649.23 

          

WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE 5,412,890.94 645,634.72 573,949.71 5,484,575.95 

          

STORM WATER ENTERPRISE 195,893.11 18,136.34 14,816.96 199,212.49 

          

TOTAL 15,516,757.09 1,791,415.35 3,969,545.22 13,338,627.22 
 
Summary Charts 
Following are comparison charts of revenues and expenditures for the past two fiscal years, this 
fiscal year’s budget and this fiscal year to date.  
 



 

 

 -

 2,000,000.00

 4,000,000.00

 6,000,000.00

 8,000,000.00

 10,000,000.00

 12,000,000.00

 14,000,000.00

FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 Budget FY 19 YTD

General Fund

General Fund Revenues General Fund Expenditures

 -

 500,000.00

 1,000,000.00

 1,500,000.00

 2,000,000.00

 2,500,000.00

 3,000,000.00

FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 Budget FY 19 YTD

Road Use Tax Fund

Road Use Tax Revenues Road Use Tax Expenditures

 -

 500,000.00

 1,000,000.00

 1,500,000.00

 2,000,000.00

 2,500,000.00

 3,000,000.00

 3,500,000.00

 4,000,000.00

 4,500,000.00

FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 Budget FY 19 YTD

Water Utility 

Water Utility Revenues Water Utility Expenditures



 

 
If you have questions regarding this document or would like additional information, please contact 
Tracey Mulcahey.  

 -

 1,000,000.00

 2,000,000.00

 3,000,000.00

 4,000,000.00

 5,000,000.00

 6,000,000.00

FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 Budget FY 19 YTD

Wastewater Utility

Wastewater Utility Revenues Wastewater Utility Expenditures

 -
 50,000.00

 100,000.00
 150,000.00
 200,000.00
 250,000.00
 300,000.00
 350,000.00
 400,000.00
 450,000.00
 500,000.00

FY 17 FY 18 FY 19 Budget FY 19 YTD

Stormwater Utility

Stormwater Utility Revenues Stormwater Utility Expenditures



Survey Results 

 

Of the 203 respondents: 

• 91% have a North Liberty card 
• 94% are North Liberty residents 
• 66.3% are employed full time outside the home 
• 17.1% are full time parents/caregivers. 
• 81.2% are female 
• 71.3% are aged 25-49 
• 33.6% visits the library at a frequency of a week or more, 30.7% visit monthly, 35.7% are 

less frequent than a month. 
• 24.3% engage with our social media at least once a week, 50% check in monthly or more, 

and 25.7% don’t use our social media. 
• 53% use Digital Johnson County.  Of those, 49.1% use multiple formats while only 8.3% 

use just audio books. 
• 91.1% satisfaction with staff friendliness. 
• 78.1% satisfaction with book collection 
• 78.2% satisfaction with DVD collection. 
• 86.3% satisfaction with family and children’s programming. 
• 78.8% satisfaction with teen programming. 
• 80% satisfaction with adult programming 
• 90.6% responded with borrowing materials being important to them. 
• 61.6% responded that family programs are important to them. 
• 58.1% responded that computer and internet access is important. 

 

Our patrons are young, female, North Liberty residents, and many have full time jobs.  They visit 
the library frequently, most at least once a month.  They are very satisfied with staff, and highly 
satisfied with the materials collections and arrays of programming.  The borrowing of materials 
looks to be the most important to respondents. 






